
 

Corporate Director (Law and Governance) and  
Monitoring Officer, T W Mortimer LLB Solicitor 

  

 

 
 

 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 
 
Notice of a Meeting, to be held in the Council Chamber - Ashford Borough Council on 
Monday, 24th January, 2022 at 7.00 pm. 
 

 
The Members of the Standards Committee are:- 
 
Councillor Mrs Bell (Chairman) 
Councillor Shorter (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Cllrs. Chilton, Forest, Knowles, Ovenden, Pickering, Turner 
 
Mrs C Vant – Independent Person  
Mr R Brasier, Mr D Lyward – Parish Council Representative 
 

IMPORTANT INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC ABOUT THIS MEETING 
 

Members of the Press and public are permitted to attend this meeting in person. 
Anyone attending will be requested to follow the measures introduced by the 
Council in order to manage the risk of COVID-19. This includes wearing face 

coverings until seated and not attending the meeting if you are displaying any 
symptoms of, or have tested positive for, COVID-19. You may also wish to consider 

taking a Lateral Flow Test no longer than 24 hours before attending the meeting. 
 
 
Agenda 

  Page Nos.. 

1.   Apologies/Substitutes 
 

 

 To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 1.2(c) 
 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest 
 

1 - 2 

 To declare any interests which fall under the following categories, as 
explained on the attached document:  
 
a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI)  
b) Other Significant Interests (OSI)  
c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests  
 
See Agenda Item 2 for further details. 
 

 

3.   Minutes 
 

3 - 6 



 To approve the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 
25th January 2021. 
 

 

4.   Annual Report of the Council's Monitoring Officer 2021 
 

7 - 20 

 
 
   

14th January 2022 
 
Queries concerning this agenda?  Please contact Member Services 
Telephone: (01233) 330349 Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk  
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: https://www.ashford.moderngov.co.uk  

 
 

mailto:membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
https://www.ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


Declarations of Interest (see also “Advice to Members” below) 
 
(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 2011, relating to items on 

this agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and 
the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting for that 
item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted). 

 
(b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct relating to items on this 

agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the 
agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting before 
the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).  
However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the Committee in the same way that a 
member of the public may do so. 

 
(c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests not required to be disclosed under (a) and 

(b), i.e. announcements made for transparency alone, such as: 
 

 Membership of amenity societies, Town/Community/Parish Councils, residents’ groups or 
other outside bodies that have expressed views or made representations, but the Member 
was not involved in compiling or making those views/representations, or 

 

 Where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with 
that person, or 

 

 Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, 
employer, etc. but not his/her financial position. 

 
 [Note: Where an item would be likely to affect the financial position of a Member, relative, 

close associate, employer, etc.; OR where an item is an application made by a Member, 
relative, close associate, employer, etc., there is likely to be an OSI or in some cases a DPI. 
ALSO, holding a committee position/office within an amenity society or other outside body, or 
having any involvement in compiling/making views/representations by such a body, may give 
rise to a perception of bias and require the Member to take no part in any motion or vote.] 

 
Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:   

(a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG’s Guide for Councillors, at 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf 

 
(b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012, 

and a copy can be found in the Constitution alongside the Council’s Good Practice Protocol 
for Councillors dealing with Planning Matters. See  https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-

democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf  
 
(c) Where a Member declares a committee position or office within, or membership of, an outside 

body that has expressed views or made representations, this will be taken as a statement 
that the Member was not involved in compiling or making them and has retained an open 
mind on the item(s) in question. If this is not the case, the situation must be explained. 

 

If any Member has any doubt about any interest which he/she may have in any item on this 
agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer, or from other Solicitors in Legal and Democracy as early as possible, and in advance 
of the Meeting. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



STD 

305 
 

Ashford Borough Council: Standards Committee 
 
Minutes of a Virtual Meeting of the Standards Committee held on Microsoft Teams 
on the 25th January 2021 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr. Mrs Bell (Chairman); 
Cllr. Shorter (Vice-Chairman); 
 
Cllrs. Chilton, Knowles, Ovenden, Pickering, Turner. 
 
Mrs C Vant – Independent Person. 
 
Apologies: 
 
Mr D Lyward – Parish Council Representative, Cllr. Forest. 
 
Also Present: 
 
Cllrs. Clokie, Harman, Ledger, White. 
 
In Attendance: 
 
Monitoring Officer, Deputy Monitoring Officer, Member Services Manager 
(Operational). 

 

218 Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillor Interest 

 
Minute No. 

Shorter 
 

Made a ‘Voluntary Announcement’ as he was the 
Portfolio Holder for Planning and Development and 
the Service was mentioned in the Monitoring 
Officer’s Annual Report. 

 

220 

219 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 3rd February 
2020 be approved and confirmed as a correct record. 

 

220 Annual Report of the Council’s Monitoring Officer 
2020 

 
The Monitoring Officer introduced his Annual Report for the calendar year 2020, 
which would be presented to the Council on the 4th March 2021. The report 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



STD 
250121 

306 
 

assessed activity in probity and related governance matters, in particular in relation 
to formal complaints about alleged breaches of protocols and codes of conduct by 
Borough and Parish Councillors. These related to the calendar year 2020.  
 
In addition, the report included data on Ombudsman complaints as these were also 
handled by the Monitoring Officer and his staff. The relevant period for these related 
to the most recent data provided by the Ombudsman, namely 1st April 2019 to 31st 
March 2020. 
 
With regard to Code of Conduct Complaints, there had been a noticeable growth in 
‘tensions’ in certain Local Councils which had led to a significant increase in the 
volume of informal complaint activity and requests for advice at Parish Council level. 
Some of this had resulted from new Virtual Meeting procedures and considerable 
support had been provided to some Local Councils. Several formal complaints had 
also been made during 2020 although a number had fallen away due to a failure to 
provide information or the fact that the complaint failed to meet legal or local 
assessment criteria (e.g. related to private conduct). The registered formal 
complaints were detailed at Table 1 on Page 6 of the report.  
 
In terms of governance issues, the year had seen noticeably fewer complaints 
related to social media usage. Whether that was as a direct result of the adoption of 
Social Media Guidance and related training in 2019 was not certain, but it was a 
pleasing development and one that would continue to be monitored. With regard to 
the Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL) recommendations reported in 
2019, preparation of a new Model Code of Conduct for Councillors had been delayed 
somewhat due to the pandemic, but following extensive consultation the Local 
Government Association had published a new Model Code a few days before 
Christmas 2020. This would now be given detailed consideration by the Kent 
Monitoring Officers Group in the coming months and a further report would be 
presented to this Committee once that work was complete.  
 
In relation to Ombudsman Complaints, the Monitoring Officer advised that there had 
been 17 received by the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) which was a slight 
decrease from 19 in the previous year. Only three of these however had been upheld 
(an increase from one in the previous year). 
 
The Annual Report was then opened up to the Committee and the following 
responses were given to questions/comments: - 
 

 With regard to whether there needed to be more training for Parish 
Councillors and to Borough Councillors on the Member/Parish Council 
relationship more generally, the Monitoring Officer advised that Parish, Town 
and Community Councils had been invited to the Code of Conduct training put 
on by ABC at the start of this Council term in June 2019, and indeed a 
number had attended. He also knew that the Kent Association of Local 
Councils (KALC) ran a comprehensive programme of training for Local 
Councils and this did include some reference to the Code of Conduct. With 
regard to the relationship and interaction between Borough Councillors and 
Parish Councils, this was not a source of any of the complaints over the last 
few years (with perhaps one exception), but there was perhaps some merit in 

Page 4



STD 
250121 

 

307 

Borough Members having a better understanding of the role of Parish 
Councils. Councillor Pickering, as Chairman of the Member Training Panel, 
said this was something the Panel could examine further.  

 

 The majority of cases reported to the Monitoring Officer did involve Parish 
Councils and were almost exclusively around tensions and/or clashes of 
personalities between individuals or small opposing groups on those Councils 
and the way those people behaved towards one another. These were difficult 
issues to legislate for by way of conventional training, but they were also 
inevitably often time consuming and resource intensive.  

 

 A number of Members considered that the cost and burden on District 
Councils for being responsible for managing the whole Code of Conduct 
complaint process was wholly unfair and something that should be looked at 
further - with the relevant bodies lobbied if necessary. Members considered 
that if there were options to recharge the cost of investigating such complaints 
to the respective Parish Council, that would be desirable. The Monitoring 
Officer advised that there was no legislative basis to do so within the current 
system. Ashford wasn’t alone in this regard and the argument had been made 
before through the CSPL work, and rejected, so he did not think there was 
any appetite for this argument to be resurrected.  
 

 In relation to resources the Monitoring Officer confirmed that it was likely that 
some outsourcing of investigation and support work would be required. 
Members asked that with effect from the start of the new financial year, data 
on time and costs be recorded for formal and informal complaint activity. 

 
Resolved: 
 
That (i) the Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer for 2020 be received, 

noted and forwarded to Full Council for approval. 
 
 (ii) the Monitoring Officer report to future meeting(s) of the Standards 

Committee in relation to the new LGA Model Code of Conduct. 
 
 (iii) the Member Training Panel examine possibilities for further 

Member training on the role of Parish Councils. 
 
 (iv) future Annual Reports from the Monitoring Officer include data on 

the time and costs incurred by the Borough Council in dealing 
with Code of Conduct complaints. 

 

___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Queries concerning these minutes?  Please contact Member Services: 
Telephone: 01233 330349  Email: membersservices@ashford.gov.uk  
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk  Page 5

mailto:membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Standards Committee 
24 JANUARY 2022 

 
Council 

 3 MARCH 2022 
 

Annual Report of the Council's 
Monitoring Officer – 2021 

 
 
A. Introduction 
 
1. The principal purpose of my Annual Report is to assess activity in probity and 

related governance matters, in particular in relation to formal complaints about 
alleged breaches of protocols and codes of conduct by borough and parish 
councillors.  The report also provides an opportunity to review the 
effectiveness of current procedures.  This report deals with the calendar year 
2021 in relation to these matters. 

 
2. The Council’s current code of conduct for councillors was adopted on 20 July 

2012 and has since been the subject of a number of amendments.  This code 
is based on Localism Act principles and was developed as a collaborative 
project by Kent Monitoring Officers in consultation with task groups of 
councillors within individual councils.  The vast majority of district and parish 
councils in Kent have adopted this “Kent Model Code of Conduct”.   

 
3. When it adopted the Code of Conduct in 2012, the Council also adopted new 

procedural “Arrangements” for handling code of conduct complaints.  Again 
this was developed on a Kent-wide basis with the objective of simplifying 
procedures and removing unnecessary bureaucracy which had beset the 
previous standards regime. 

 
4. The Council has also adopted a “Good Practice Protocol for Councillors 

Dealing with Planning Matters”.  This sets out detailed best practice rules for 
this specialist and sensitive area of the Council’s work which go beyond the 
general rules set out in the code of conduct.  The Protocol was substantially 
revised and updated in October 2015 to reflect changes in the law and 
government guidance.  The first formal complaint of breach of the Protocol 
was dealt with in 2017. 

 
5. My Annual Report also includes data on Ombudsman complaints as these are 

also handled by or on behalf of the Monitoring Officer.  The Standards 
Committee monitors any issues of probity raised in Ombudsman 
investigations.  In terms of Ombudsman complaints the relevant period relates 
to the most recent data provided by the Ombudsman namely that for the 
period 1st April 2020 to 31 March 2021. 

 
B. Code of Conduct Complaints 2021 
 

6. Formal complaint activity in Ashford has been relatively low since adoption of 
the new code of conduct in 2012. For example, during 2016 no new formal 
complaints were submitted, whilst in previous years the few complaints made, 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



 

mainly at Parish Council level, had been resolved informally.  No complaints 
had been taken to formal investigation and hearing up to the end of 2016.  
However the period since 2017 has been more challenging. Since early 2020, 
various temporary national and local “lockdowns” have been in place with most 
staff working remotely and councillor meetings taking place “virtually” up to May 
2021. However this has not resulted in a reduction of formal or informal 
complaint activity. On the contrary the volume of informal complaint activity and 
requests for advice has grown significantly at parish council level. Several 
formal complaints were made in 2020 although a number fell away due to a 
failure to provide information or the fact that the complaint failed to meet legal 
or local assessment criteria eg. related to private conduct. In the end only three 
formal complaints proceeded. 

 
7. The formal complaints received and registered in 2021 are set out in Table 1 

below. This includes two cases decided in 2021 albeit submitted in late 2020. 
 
8. It can be seen that not only has the number of formal complaints grown very 

considerably, but to date only one of the complaints merited even partial 
formal investigation. So it is not necessarily justified to draw adverse 
conclusions about parish governance just because a large number of 
complaints has been made against it. 

 
9.   The handling of these complaints has been largely undertaken by an external 

specialist lawyer in view of staff vacancies and other pressing work priorities 
in legal services. This has been undertaken within the current legal services 
budget, using vacancy savings. Whilst this has allowed much of the work to 
be undertaken within reasonable timescales, the current volume of complaint 
work is unsustainable in the longer term. The volume of complaints in 2021 
exceeds by a very large margin those received in any other single year since 
2012. Since all of the formal complaints have emanated from parish council 
level, I am including a recommendation at the end of this report that I work 
with KALC to identify measures and opportunities to minimise the incidence of 
formal complaints. This may include a more robust use of the existing 
threshold criteria to identify unmeritorious complaints earlier. 

 

Table 1 

Formal Code of Conduct Complaints Made 

 

No Ashford BC 

-Complaint 
Reference 

Council Background 

(Allegation) 

Action taken 

1 ABC/20/008 Kennington 
Community 
Council 

Disadvantage 
members of the 
council/ misuse 
of council 
resources/ 
disclosure of 
confidential 
information 

No further action. 

Page 8



 

2 ABC/20/008 Kennington 
Community 
Council 

Misuse of council 
resources/ 
confidential 
information/failure 
to declare an 
interest. 

No further action 

3 ABC/20/011 Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Bullying/ failure to 
show leadership 

No further action recommendation for 
mediation. 

4 ABC/20/011 Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Bullying No further action recommendation for 
mediation. 

5. ABC/20/011 Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Bullying No further action recommendation for 
mediation 

6. ABC/20/011 Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Bullying No further action recommendation for 
mediation 

7 ABC/20/009 Newenden 
Parish 
Council 

Use of position to 
gain advantage/ 
conduct could bring 
office into disrepute. 

No further action 

8 ABC/20/012 Kennington 
Community 
Council 

Failing to act with 
respect/ bullying & 
intimidation/ failure 
to use council 
resources in 
accordance with 
requirements 

Complaint 1B only has  been referred 
for investigation 

9 ABC/20/012 Kennington 
Community 
Council 

Use of foul or 
abusive 
language/malicious 
disrespect and 
unfounded 
accusation against 
Clerk 

No further action 

10 ABC/20/012 Kennington 
Community 
Council 

Disrespect and 
accusation against 
the Clerk. 

No further action. 

11 ABC/21/01A Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Failure to disclose 
interest. 

No further action 

12 ABC/21/01B Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Failure to disclose         
interest 

No further action. 

13 ABC/21/01/C Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Failure to disclose 
interest. 

No further action. 

14 ABC/21/01/D Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Failure to disclose 
interest. 

No further action. 

Page 9



 

15 ABC/21/01E Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Failure to disclose 
interest. 

No further action 

16 ABC/21/02A Chilham 
Parish 
Council 

Prevention of 
access to 
information 
permitted by law/ 
conduct bringing 
office into 
disrepute. 

No further action. 

17 ABC/21/02B Chilham 
Parish 
Council 

Compromise the 
integrity or 
impartiality of 
those in office/ 
must not conduct 
themselves in a 
manner which 
would bring 
councillor’s office 
or Authority into 
disrepute. 

Final decision to be issued. 

18 ABC/21/04 Kennington 
Community 
Council 

Behave in a 
manner which is 
respectful/ 
bullying and 
intimidation. 

No further action. 

19 ABC/21/05 Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Behave in a 
manner which 
does not bring the 
office or authority 
into disrepute/ 
bullying. 

 

No further action 

20 ABC/21/06 Egerton 
Parish 
Council 

Failed to declare 
interest. 

Final decision to be issued. 

21 ABC/21/07A 

Dated 
19.10.21 

Egerton PC Disclosure of 
information given 
in confidence. 

Final decision to be issued. 

22 ABC/21/07B 
Dated 
19.10.21 

Egerton PC Disclosure of 
information given 
in confidence. 

Final decision to be issued. 

23 ABC/21/07C 
Dated 
19.10.21 

Egerton PC Disclosure of 
information given 
in confidence 

Final decision to be issued. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



 

 
C. Other Relevant Governance Developments in 2020 
 

10. The new Social Media Guidance Note for Councillors was adopted in May 
2019. In addition a revised Councillor/Officer Working Relationship protocol 
was adopted clarifying standards of expected behaviours. Some training in 
relation to these protocols was provided following the elections in 2019 and I 
am pleased to say that noticeably fewer complaints (formal and informal) have 
related to social media usage since 2019. 

11.  In my last annual report I included an update on the review work of the national 
Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL). The CSPL had made 15 “Best 
Practice” Recommendations in relation to the local government ethical 
standards system, some of which required legislation to implement. An update 
has been provided to the CSPL by all local authorities. 

12. One of the CSPL’s formal recommendations in 2019 was that the Local 
Government Association should prepare an optional new Model Code of 
Conduct for Councillors in order to encourage greater consistency and higher 
standards. Following extensive consultation the LGA has now published a new 
Model Code of Conduct and some new “Guidance”. This is now being given 
detailed consideration by the Kent Monitoring Officers Group and a further 
report to this Committee will be presented when that work is complete. 

 
 
D. Ombudsman Complaints 2019/20 
 
13. Since April 2013, complaints about social housing have been dealt with by the 

Housing Ombudsman (HO) and not the Local Government Ombudsman 
(LGO).   

 
14. For Members’ information the analysis of the complaints resolved by the LGO 

in 2020/21 are attached (Appendix A).  The LGO’s Annual Letter and Report 
are also included in Appendix A. 

 
15. The number of complaints received by the Ombudsman in 2020/21 (18) was 

similar to 2019/20 (17) but it is pleasing that the number of complaints upheld 
in 20/21 was nil, as opposed to three in the previous year. Details are 
provided in the Table below. 

 
16. A new column was added to the Table of Ombudsman Complaints with effect 

from 19/20 giving information on action taken/lessons learned where relevant. 
This is consistent with the approach advocated in the Ombudsman’s annual 
review letter in 2020 and also with the most recent annual letter which 
highlights the importance of using complaints to drive improvements. 

 
 
E. Recommendations 
 
1. That the Annual Report of the Monitoring Officer for 2021 be received and 

noted.  
 

Page 11



 

2. That the Monitoring Officer report to future meeting(s) of the Standards    
Committee in relation to the new LGA Model Code of Conduct. 

 
3. That the Monitoring Officer contact the Kent Association of Local Councils 

with a view to discussing and agreeing measures to reduce the incidence and 
cost of formal complaints at parish council level. 

 
 
T W MORTIMER 
Director of Law and Governance & Monitoring Officer 
January 2022 

Page 12



 

Appendix A – Analysis of Ombudsman Complaints 
 

The Ombudsman investigates complaints about Council services to remedy personal injustice caused by maladministration (“fault”) or 
service failure. 
 
Between 1st April 2020 and 31st March 2021 the Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) made decisions on 18 complaints as follows: 
 
Incomplete or invalid complaint 
Referred back for local resolution 
 
 
 
 
Closed after initial enquiries 
Investigated, but not upheld 
 
 

 
  3 
  5 
  8 
  
 
 
  8 
  2 
10 
 
 

Attached is a table providing details on the 10 complaints about which the LGO contacted the Council, and outcome of these complaints.  
Only 2 complaints were fully investigated by the LGO and these were not upheld.   
 
I have also attached the Ombudsman’s Annual Review letter 2020/2021. 
 
When the LGO has issued a report on a completed investigation, these are generally published in the Complaints Outcomes section of 
the LGO website www.lgo.org.uk.  The published information does not name the complainant or any individual involved with the 
complaint.  Each Council’s annual data is uploaded onto an interactive map, along with a copy of the Annual Review letter.  Information 
can be found on decisions made about complaints against the Council, public reports issued by the LGO and the service improvements 
the Council has agreed to make as a result of LGO investigations (if any). 
 
This year, the LGO has focused on the outcomes of complaints and what can be learned from them, and statistics are concentrated on 
three key areas: complaints upheld; compliance with recommendations; satisfactory remedy provided by the authority.  In this year, 0% of 
complaints made against the Council and investigated by the LGO were upheld.  No recommendations were due for compliance and the 

P
age 13



 

Council was not required to provide any remedies.  Key annual statistics for the Council are also provided as a comparison with similar 
types of authorities. 
 
To allow authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, the Ombudsman did not accept new complaints and stopped investigating 
existing cases between March and June 2020.  This reduced the number of complaints received and decided by the Ombudsman in the 
2020-21 year.  This should be considered when comparing data from previous years.   
 
Reference ABC Dept Complaint details Decision LGO comment Action taken by the 

Council/lessons learned 
 

19019831 Planning Complained about the 
Council’s planning 
actions and Local Plan 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – out of 
jurisdiction. 

N/A  

19020822 Planning Complained that a 
Planning Officer misled 
the Planning Committee 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – no 
further action. 

N/A  

20000841 Legal & 
Democracy 

Complained that there 
were procedural faults in 
how the Council 
considered a planning 
application for 
development near her 
home.  She said some 
elected Members of the 
Planning Committee 
voted along party lines 
and an absent Member 
was replaced by an 
inappropriate substitute 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – no 
further action. 

N/A  

20001177 Planning Complained about how 
the Council consulted 
about a large 
development next to her 
home. 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – no 
further action. 

N/A  

P
age 14



 

Reference ABC Dept Complaint details Decision LGO comment Action taken by the 
Council/lessons learned 
 

20002531 Planning Complained that the 
Council failed to 
consider the impact 
on his privacy when it 
approved a planning 
application for a site next 
to his home 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – out of 
jurisdiction 

N/A  

20005898 Planning Complained about how 
the Council dealt with an 
application for a 
development near his 
home. He said the 
application was not 
properly publicised and 
the Council did not 
consider the impact the 
new building would have 
on the area. 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – no 
further action. 

N/A  

20005562 Planning Complained about the 
Council’s handling of a 
reported breach of 
planning control at her 
property. She also 
complained about the 
Council’s handling of her 
planning application to 
regularise the breach 
and about the way it 
dealt with her complaint. 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – no 
further action. 

N/A  

20002542 Planning Complained about the 
Council’s decision to 
approve a planning 

Not Upheld – no 
further action 

N/A  

P
age 15



 

Reference ABC Dept Complaint details Decision LGO comment Action taken by the 
Council/lessons learned 
 

application for a holiday 
home on land next to his 
home 

20007838 Housing Complained the 
Council’s lettings policy 
unfairly favoured Council 
tenants over housing 
association tenants 
wanting to move home 
and the Council should 
have rehoused him 
sooner. 

Not Upheld – no 
maladministration 

N/A  

20012040 Planning Complained that the 
Council decided not to 
do any public 
consultation on the third 
set of permitted plans for 
the development next to 
his property 

Closed after initial 
enquiries – no 
further action. 

N/A  

 

HOUSING OMBUDSMAN 

The Housing Ombudsman does not provide Councils with an annual report on complaints made to its service.   

The table below outlines the complaints made to the Housing Ombudsman and investigated during 2020/21, and the outcomes and lessons learned 
by the Council (where required). 

Reference ABC Dept Complaint details Decision LGO comment Action taken by the 
Council/lessons learned 
 

P
age 16



 

201908089 Housing 
 

Complained about the 
way the Council 
handled ASB 
complaints and rent 
accounts 
 

No 
maladministration 
found 

Recommendations 
made by HO to 
improve service 

Recommendations 
implemented by Housing 
Service 

201908089 
Appeal against 
determination 

Housing 
 

Appeal for review of 
Housing Ombudsman 
decision that no 
maladministration found 
in the way the Council 
handled ASB complaint 
and rent account. 

No 
maladministration 
found by review. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

P
age 17



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21 July 2021 
 

By email 
 

Mrs Kerly 
Chief Executive 
Ashford Borough Council 

Dear Mrs Kerly 

Annual Review letter 2021 
 

I write to you with our annual summary of statistics on the decisions made by the Local 
Government and Social Care Ombudsman about your authority for the year ending 
31 March 2021. At the end of a challenging year, we maintain that good public administration is 
more important than ever and I hope this feedback provides you with both the opportunity to reflect 
on your Council’s performance and plan for the future. 

You will be aware that, at the end of March 2020 we took the unprecedented step of temporarily 
stopping our casework, in the wider public interest, to allow authorities to concentrate efforts on 
vital frontline services during the first wave of the Covid-19 outbreak. We restarted casework in 
late June 2020, after a three month pause. 

We listened to your feedback and decided it was unnecessary to pause our casework again during 
further waves of the pandemic. Instead, we have encouraged authorities to talk to us on an 
individual basis about difficulties responding to any stage of an investigation, including 
implementing our recommendations. We continue this approach and urge you to maintain clear 
communication with us. 

Complaint statistics 
 

This year, we continue to focus on the outcomes of complaints and what can be learned from 
them. We want to provide you with the most insightful information we can and have focused 
statistics on three key areas: 

Complaints upheld - We uphold complaints when we find some form of fault in an authority’s 
actions, including where the authority accepted fault before we investigated. 

Compliance with recommendations - We recommend ways for authorities to put things right 
when faults have caused injustice and monitor their compliance with our recommendations. 
Failure to comply is rare and a compliance rate below 100% is a cause for concern. 

Page 18



 

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority - In these cases, the authority upheld the 
complaint and we agreed with how it offered to put things right. We encourage the early resolution 
of complaints and credit authorities that accept fault and find appropriate ways to put things right. 

Finally, we compare the three key annual statistics for your authority with similar types of 
authorities to work out an average level of performance. We do this for County Councils, District 
Councils, Metropolitan Boroughs, Unitary Councils, and London Boroughs. 

Your annual data will be uploaded to our interactive map, Your council’s performance, along with a 
copy of this letter on 28 July 2021. This useful tool places all our data and information about 
councils in one place. You can find the decisions we have made about your Council, public reports 
we have issued, and the service improvements your Council has agreed to make as a result of our 
investigations, as well as previous annual review letters. 

I would encourage you to share the resource with colleagues and elected members; the 
information can provide valuable insights into service areas, early warning signs of problems and 
is a key source of information for governance, audit, risk and scrutiny functions. 

As you would expect, data has been impacted by the pause to casework in the first quarter of the 
year. This should be considered when making comparisons with previous year’s data. 

Supporting complaint and service improvement 
 

I am increasingly concerned about the evidence I see of the erosion of effective complaint 
functions in local authorities. While no doubt the result of considerable and prolonged budget and 
demand pressures, the Covid-19 pandemic appears to have amplified the problems and my 
concerns. With much greater frequency, we find poor local complaint handling practices when 
investigating substantive service issues and see evidence of reductions in the overall capacity, 
status and visibility of local redress systems. 

With this context in mind, we are developing a new programme of work that will utilise complaints 
to drive improvements in both local complaint systems and services. We want to use the rich 
evidence of our casework to better identify authorities that need support to improve their complaint 
handling and target specific support to them. We are at the start of this ambitious work and there 
will be opportunities for local authorities to shape it over the coming months and years. 

An already established tool we have for supporting improvements in local complaint handling is 
our successful training programme. During the year, we successfully adapted our 
face-to-face courses for online delivery. We provided 79 online workshops during the year, 
reaching more than 1,100 people. To find out more visit www.lgo.org.uk/training. 

Yours sincerely, 

 

Michael King 
Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
Chair, Commission for Local Administration in England 

Page 19



 

Ashford Borough Council 
For the period ending: 31/03/21 

 

Complaints upheld 

 

 
0% 

 
 

0% of complaints we 
investigated were upheld. 

 
This compares to an average of 
53% in similar authorities. 

 
0 

upheld decisions 

 
Statistics are based on a total of 2 

detailed investigations for the 
period between 1 April 2020 to 31 

March 2021 

Compliance with Ombudsman recommendations 

 

No recommendations were due for compliance in this period 

Satisfactory remedy provided by the authority 

 
The Ombudsman did not uphold any detailed investigations during this period 

 
 

NOTE: To allow authorities to respond to the Covid-19 pandemic, we did not accept new 
complaints and stopped investigating existing cases between March and June 2020. This 
reduced the number of complaints we received and decided in the 20-21 year. Please consider 
this when comparing data from previous years. 

Page 20


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Annual Report of the Council's Monitoring Officer 2021

